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IN RE:
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Case Procedural Summary

DATE OF DISCIPLINE: Termination 9-22-2025
DATE OF ASSIGNMENT
TO HEARING OFFICER: 10-7-25
DATE OF PRE HEARING: 10-14-25
DATE OF HEARING: 12-15-25 and 1-5-26
DATE HEARING CLOSED: 1-31-26 (final legal briefs submitted)
PLACE OF HEARING: City Attorney Library Conference Room
REPRESENTATIVE FOR CITY: Sarah L. Hartnett, Senior Asst. City Attorney
REPRESENTATIVE FOR EMPLOYEE: Fernando Chacon, Attorney at Law

WITNESSES CALLED BY THE CITY:

Pablo Caballero, Director Parks and Recreation Department
Monica Vargas, Recreation Program Manager, Parks and Rec.
Ricardo Valenzuela, Human Resources Employee Relations

Brisa Renteria, Senior Human Resources Analyst

Amaris Crabtree, Recreation Programs Supervisor, Parks and Rec.
Daniel Calderon, Park Area Supervisor, Parks and Rec.

WITNESSES CALLED BY THE EMPLOYEE:

Rosa Montes, Recreation/Sports Coordinator, Parks and Rec.
EXHIBITS ENTERED AS EVIDENCE:

City Exhibits C-1 thru C-20

Employee’s Exhibits: None

HEARING OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION

This case has several issues of procedural irregularities. A Civil Service Commission rule

requires that an employee receive a proposed notice of discipline “within 120 calendar days from
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the date Human Resources is made aware of the occurrence.” Because of the rule, the Parks and
Recreation Department and the City’s Human Resources Department (“HR”) did not follow their
regular processes because the employee being investigated and subsequently disciplined, Rosa
Montes, was on workers compensation leave during the 120 days. Consequently, the Human
Resources Department’s investigation took place and was completed without ever interviewing
the disciplined employee, Rosa Montes. The Proposed Notice of Separation was not given to the
employee in person by the Department Director or his designee as was the customary procedure.
Instead, the Proposed Notice of Separation was mailed to Rosa Montes while she was still on leave.
After written communication with Fernando Chacon, who is Ms. Montes’s attorney, Montes was
offered a “pre-termination hearing.” The first time Rosa Montes met with the Department Director
was when she was handed her final Notice of Separation at the beginning of the “pre-termination
hearing,” which was adjourned abruptly by the Assistant City Attorney in attendance.

Also unusual is the fact that the one incident of drinking and driving a city vehicle while
on the job, for which Rosa Montes was terminated, was reported approximately seven months
after it allegedly occurred by an employee whose performance had just been found to be
unsatisfactory by Rosa Montes, her immediate supervisor.

Therefore, this Recommendation is broken into four parts:

Chronology of events

The 120 day rule

The due process or “pre termination hearing”

The facts of the case whether Rosa Montes drank alcohol while
on the job.

oS awp

A. Chronology*

*Where exhibits are not referenced, the information was obtained by testimony at the hearing with this Hearing
Officer.

October 2004: Rosa Montes hired by the City. (22+years with the City)

April 2023: Rosa Montes named Recreation Sports Coordinator, Parks and Recreation Dept.

August 14, 2024 (approx.): Amaris Crabtree hired by Parks and Recreation as a Recreation
Program Supervisor and placed under the direct supervision of Rosa Montes. Placed on six months
probation per policy.

February 2025: Amaris Crabtree’s 6 month probation did not end but instead was extended for 3
months by her supervisor Rosa Montes. Crabtree also placed on performance improvement plan
by Montes.
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February 10, 2025: Formal counseling of Rosa Montes for unprofessional conduct of favoritism.
It is unrelated to the events for which she was terminated. (Exhibit C-12)

March 12, 2025: Montes went out of work on leave, workers compensation.

March 12, 2025: Amaris Crabtree interviewed by HR Rep. Brisa Renteria and Program Manager
Monica Vargas regarding investigation of some department issues. Crabtree indicated she wanted
a meeting without Rosa Montes present.

March 12, 2025: Manager Monica Vargas and Supervisor Mike Gonzalez met with Amaris
Crabtree regarding incidents unrelated to Rosa Montes. Crabtree stated that Rosa Montes and
Clarissa Arreola were drinking alcohol on the job on August 21, 2024 and that Montes drove a
City vehicle with Crabtree as a passenger after she had been drinking. Vargas reported the
conversation to Dept. Director Caballero. Vargas told HR at their weekly meeting.

April 24, 2025: E mails back and forth from HR Brisa Renteria and Amaris Crabtree regarding
her report about Rosa Montes drinking then driving a City vehicle while on the job.(Exhibit C-5).

May 6. 2025: Crabtree e mailed a formal complaint as requested by HR Brisa Renteria about Rosa
Montes and Clarissa Arreola drinking on the job the prior year.(Exhibit C-5).

May 7. 2025: HR Richard Valenzuela assigned to investigate Crabtree’s allegations. (Exhibit C-
5).

May 2025: Amaris Crabiree passed probation under supervisor Mike Gonzalez, her supervisor
after Rosa Montes went on leave.

July 31, 2025: HR Richard Valenzuela concluded his investigation. Did not interview Rosa
Montes. (Exhibit C-4).

August 17, 2025: Montes cleared by her doctor to return to work with restrictions but had not been
cleared to do so by the City. Did not return to work prior to termination.

August 29, 2025: Proposed Notice of Separation mailed to Montes by Valenzuela by regular mail
and by certified mail.(Exhibit C-3).

September 8. 2025: Attorney Fernando Chacon, representing Montes, sent e mail to Dept. Director
Caballero, outlining Montes’s response to and defenses to Proposed Notice of Separation. “This
letter serves as a formal response and notice of intent to appeal the proposed termination of her
employment.”(Exhibit C-15).

September 9, 2025, 8:00 pm.: Pablo Caballero received September 8, 2026 e mail from Attorney
Fernando Chacon. (Exhibit C-15).

September 9, 2025: Department Director Caballero sent € mail to HR Claudia Cancellare
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forwarding Chacon letter. (Exhibit C-15).

September 10, 2025: HR Claudia Cancellare confirmed her receipt of Chacon e mail to Director
Caballero. (Exhibit C-15).

September 11, 2025: Karla Saenz of the City Legal Dept. sent e mail sent to Attorney Chacon and
stated: “As her representative we want to notify you that under the City’s Civil Service Rule 8
your client has the right to a pre-termination hearing which is a meeting with the department’s
director. Would you like 1o move forward with scheduling the meeting, would you like to waive
your client’s right to the meeting, or would you like our HR department to reach out to your
client?” (Exhibit C-17)

September 14, 2025: Attorney Chacon sent e mail to Karla Saenz asking tor pre -termination
hearing. (Exhibit C-17).

September 16, 2025: Department Director Caballero sent a Notice to Rosa Montes that a “Pre
Termination Hearing” would be held on September 22, 2025 at 9:00 am. and stated: “The hearing
is not a formal proceeding. You will be permitted to present any explanation you may wish to the
Interim Parks and Recreation Director concerning the charges and specifications provided to you.
You may present evidence on your behalf and a representative may accompany you if you so desire.
Everything that you present at the hearing will be considered before a final determination on your
employment is made.” (Exhibit C-14).

September 17, 2025: E mail sent to Attorney Chacon by Karla Saenz with pre-termination hearing
time, date, and location. (Ex.C-17)

September 22, 2025: “Pre Termination Hearing” held with Department Director.

B. 120 Day Rule

Civil Service Commission Rule 8 Section 3e states as follows:

“A proposed written notice of disciplinary action must be served on an employee within 120
calendar days from the date Human Resources is made aware of the occurrence of the incident
giving rise to the discipline, provided however that this period of limitation shall be tolled if an
investigation is being conducted by a law enforcement authority into criminal charges against the
employee arising out of the same incident. Once a Department Head receives notice from the
employee that charges have been preferred, through an indictment or information, or that the
criminal investigation has been concluded without the preferral of charges, then the time period
will resume running. " (Exhibit C-1, p.3).

Additionally, paragraph f of Section 3, Rule 8, states as follows:

“Any issue of non-compliance with these provisions will be considered by the hearing officer
and/or Commission upon the appeal of the disciplinary action.” (Exhibit C-1, p. 3).

The main dispute in this case regarding the 120 day rule is determining when Human
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Resources was “made aware” of the allegations that Rosa Montes had been drinking on the job in
August of 2024. The Notice of Separation alleges that the “date Received by Human Resources”
was May 6, 2025. One can see from the Chronology section above that May 6, 2025 was the date
that Amaris Crabiree submitted by € mail a formal complaint requested by Human Resources.
(Exhibit C-5). However, the rule states that the 120 calendar days starts running when “Human
Resources is made aware of the occurrence giving rise to the discipline.” The rule does not state
“Date Received by Human Resources” such as is stated in bold face on the Notice of Separation.
(Exhibit C-1, p. 8). The “date aware” and the “date received” can be the same, but in this case
they were not. The only exception to the 120 day rule is when law enforcement, such as the police,
is investigating whether the incident involved should result in criminal charges or not. The 120
days is tolled until the criminal case is either proceeding forward through the court system or has
been dismissed. There was no criminal proceeding or investigation in the present case. Rosa
Montes was on leave due to a workers compensation claim during the 120 day period. Other than
criminal actions, there is no tolling period for workers compensation or FMLA leave or other
circumstances as exceptions to the 120 day rule.

In the case at hand, Rosa Montes argued that Human Resources was “made aware” of the
occurrence leading to the discipline on March 12, 2025. In the Chronology section above in this
Recommendation, March 12, 2025 is the date that Amaris Crabtree met with Department Manager
Monica Vargas and Supervisor Mike Gonzalez. Neither is from Human Resources. Monica
Vargas testified before this Hearing Officer that she reported the information “to HR at their
weekly meeting.” She could not say the exact date and did not say it was to HR Brisa Renteria, but
did testify that it would have been at her first regular weekly meeting with HR after March 12,
2025. Brisa Renteria of Human Resources testified that she could not say the exact date she
became “aware” of the drinking allegations, but she could testify accurately that she first became
aware of the alleged alcohol drinking on the job by Rosa Montes at least by, or no later than, April
24,2025. This is confirmed by a series of e mails on April 24, 2025 beginning at 1:16 p.m. between
Ms. Renteria and Amaris Crabtree which show communication about the Montes alleged drinking
incident. (Exhibit C-5). In those e mails Renteria inquired of Crabtree what date she met with
Monica Vargas and Mike Gonzalez, presumably about the alcohol incident with Montes. Crabtree
replied “March 12”. (Exhibit C-5, p 3-4). A follow up e mail from Renteria on April 24, 2026,

then told Crabtree she needed to write a full statement because “we don’t have anything on file in
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regards to you needing to speak to HR.”(Exhibit C-5, p. 3). Renteria again wrote to Crabtree on
May 6, 2025 asking for the statement as soon as possible, and asking questions about what vehicle
number Rosa Montes used and whether there were cameras at the center where Crabtree worked.
(Exhibit C-5, p. 3). Crabtree answered the same day with the information about the license and
cameras, and later that day on May 6, 2025, did e mail a full statement to Renteria. (Exhibit C-5,
pp 1-2).

Therefore, while there was no evidence of to whom from HR Vargas reported her March
12 meeting , or the date, there is evidence that at least by April 24, 2024, HR’s Brisa Renteria was
aware of the drinking on the job allegations and had begun investigating it. HR Renteria testified
at this Civil Service Commission hearing that HR would still have looked into the allegations even
if Crabtree had not filed a written formal complaint because they were serious allegations.

The Proposed Notice of Separation is dated August 29, 2025 and it is undisputed that it
was mailed to Rosa Montes because she was on leave and not at work. Ricardo Valenzuela, the
HR person who handled the investigation of Rosa Montes and the procedures that led to the final
Notice of Termination, testified that he could not contact Montes for an interview or to present
her with the proposed Notice of Separation along with the Department Director because she was
on FMLA leave and they are not allowed to contact an employee in those circumstances. Montes
testified that although her doctor had said she eligible to return to work on August 27, 2025, this
medical information had been relayed to the City but the City had to approve her return to work,
and this had not been completed as of August 29, 2025. Montes testified that she was on workers
compensation leave rather than “FMLA”, as testified to by HR Valenzuela.

Depending on the date chosen to commence the start of the 120 days, either the Proposed
Notice was timely, or it was untimely. Assumed in the calculation below is that the date the Notice
was mailed was the date it was “served” on the employee. There is something called the “mailbox
rule” under Texas state law where a document can be deemed served when it is deposited in the
mail. (22 Tex.Admin. Code Section 157.4) However, the mailbox rule does not appear in Civil
Service Rule 8 or Rule 2 Definition and Rules of Construction. There was no proof during the
Hearing as to exactly what date Rosa Montes received the mailed Proposed Notice of Separation.
She testified that she never received the certified copy. The certified receipt where delivery or non-
delivery is shown was not entered into evidence by the City. Therefore, the calculations are as

follows:
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April 24 to August 29, 2025: 127 calendar days (untimely)
May 6 to August 29, 2025: 115 calendar days (timely)

Discussion regarding 120 day Rule

Based on a preponderance of the evidence, this Hearing Officer finds that the service of
the Proposed Notice of Separation was untimely and in violation of Civil Service Commission
Rule 8, Section 3e. She has considered the non-compliance under her authority pursuant to Rule
8 Section 3f of the Civil Service Commission Rules. The Notice of Proposed Separation was not
served within 120 days from the date Human Resources was made aware of the occurrence of the
incident giving rise to the discipline. Human Resources was aware of the incident at least since
April 24, 2025, and perhaps even earlier. The Proposed Notice was mailed (served) August 29,
2025, which is 127 days after Human Resources was made aware. There are no exceptions in this
case since there was no criminal investigation taking place with law enforcement.

Rule 8 does not indicate what penalty should be assessed against the City/Department
Director for a violation of the procedural rules, which rules are meant to ensure a timely and orderly
due process proceeding. The rule states it should be “considered” by the Hearing Officer and/or
Commission. In Texas court proceedings, there are rules called “statutes of limitations” which
provide time deadlines for initial filing of lawsuits. Different kinds of lawsuits have different time
limitations by which they must be filed. Failure to meet those deadlines results in the legal case
being dismissed out of court. Of course, there are always exceptions that a Court may consider,
but the bar is extremely high and Court discretion is rarely exercised. Accordingly, viewing the
120 day rule as a type of “statute of limitations™ for the City/Department Director, viclation of the
120 day rule by the City in the present case should result overturning the discipline. I recommend
that the termination be overturned on this basis given the facts of this case.

C. Due Process and Pre Termination Hearing

Rosa Montes, through her attorney Fernando Chacon, contended that her due process rights
had been violated by the way her termination was handled. During and after the hearing before
this Hearing Officer, both the attorney for Montes and the Assistant City Attorneys representing
the Department Director submitted substantial legal briefs to the Hearing Officer regarding the
allegations of violation of due process rights as applied to the facts of the termination of Rosa
Montes. The Hearing Officer only considered the due process rights relevant to the jurisdiction of

this Civil Service Commission termination appeal, and not other statutes and laws Mr. Chacon
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cited as having been violated, such as the civil rights federal law known as 42 U.S.C. Section
1983.

The Constitution of the United States, Fourteenth Amendment, requires that no State may
deprive a person of life, liberty, or property “without due process of law.” The Courts have
interpreted what “due process” rights accrue to a governmental employee. In general, the U.S.
Supreme court has stated that a governmental employee has a due process right that a termination,
such as this case, be proceeded by notice and opportunity for a hearing appropriate to the nature
of the case. Cleveland Bd. Of Educ. v. Loudermill, 470 U.S. 532 (1985). While the hearing need
not be elaborate, due process requires that a disciplined employee have the opportunity to present
reasons, either in person or in writing, why proposed action should not be taken.(Loudermill ). The
Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals, under which Texas federal courts fall, has clarified that it is the
final decision maker who must hear and consider the employee’s story before deciding whether to
discharge the employee. Coggin v Longview Indep. Sch. Dist., 337 F.3d 459 (5thCir. 2003).

The El Paso Civil Service Commission incorporated due process rights and obligations
required by law in their Rules and Procedures. Rule 8 outlines a right to a conference with the
Department Head as follows:

Section 3b: “Within ten (10) days of receipt of the proposed disciplinary action, the employee may
request a conference with the Department Head. Within five (5) working days of receipt of the
employee’s response, the Department Head shall meet with the employee, provided further that
this period may be extended with the mutual consent of the Department Head and the employee.
No witnesses may be called to testify as part of the employee’s explanation or response. During
the conference, the employee, their representative, and the Department Head shall engage in
discussions with a view toward reaching a consensus and agreement relative to the proposed
disciplinary action. No part of the discussions that take place during the conference may be
offered into evidence at any subsequent hearing, except for the limited purpose of determining
compliance or non-compliance with the provisions of the Rule as provided in paragraph 'f * and
Jor impeachment purposes.”

In the alternative, Rule 8, Section 3¢ provides another process, a “pre-termination hearing,”
which can be used in discharge cases as follows:

Section 3 ¢: “Respecting discharge, those departments currently using a pre-termination hearing
shall not be required to have a conference as contemplated hereinabove provided that the time
between notification and hearing shall be at least five (5) days and further provided that there
shall be no change to current practices regarding violations of applicable federal laws.”

Rule 8 Section 3¢ makes clear that departments currently using a pre-termination hearing

are not required to offer or hold a Section 3b meeting with the Department Director. However,
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in the Rosa Montes case, the only process offered to Montes was the 3¢ pre-termination hearing,
even though the Department Director testified that he usually allowed the employee to ask for a
meeting with him as outlined in Rule 8 Section 3b.

At the hearing before this Hearing Officer, Department Head Pablo Caballero testified that
his usual practice was to present the notice of proposed action with background documents to the
employee. The employee can digest the information and ask for a conference with him such as
the Section 3b conference. Caballero testified that this was not possible since Rosa Montes was
leave so the proposed Notice of Separation was mailed to her. Caballero further testified that
although he was open to listening, he did not expect a hearing to take place when he met with Rosa
Montes and her attorney on September 22, 2025. Cabaliero testified that since it was normal
practice to have the department head conference with the employee and give them the proposed
notice, and then have a final meeting to give the employee the final disciplinary notice, he did not
expect a hearing. Present at the pre-termination hearing were Pablo Caballero, HR Ricardo
Valenzuela, Rosa Montes and her attorney Fernando Chacon, and Assistant City Attorney Evan
Reed. Although the final Notice of Separation was unsigned when he entered the meeting,
Caballero testified that he did sign it at the beginning of the meeting and handed it to Montes to
sign. Montes’s attorney became upset and asked if Caballero had just said that the only reason
they were at the meeting was to give them the final Notice. Caballero testified that he answered
“yes.” Caballero testified that he had expected Montes would have contacted him prior to the Sept.
22, 2025 hearing to talk to him so he was “caught off guard” by Chacon. Montes’s Attorney
Chacon was trying to ask questions. Assistant City Attorney Evan Reed had been sitting in the
room but not at the table. He stood up, began to engage with Chacon, and Chacon with him. Reed
then told Caballero not to answer questions, and shortly thereafter Reed adjourned the meeting.

Before signing the final document at the Sept. 22, 2025 hearing, Rosa Montes wrote in
cursive on the final Notice above the signatures the following: *“admitted to 5 day meeting not
being necessary.” (Exhibit C-1, p. 1). Montes testified that she was instructed by her attorney to
write that on the Notice before she signed since she and her attorney had just been told that the 5
day meeting “was not necessary.” The “5S day meeting” would clearly be the Rule 8, Section 3b

conference with the Department Head meeting.
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Discussion regarding Pre-Termination Hearing

The employee’s due process rights appear in the rules regarding the Rule 8 Section 3b

conference with the Department Head or a Section 3c pre-termination hearing as part of the pre-
termination due process rights. There was no evidence at the hearing before this Hearing Officer
as to why a “pre-termination hearing” as outlined in Rule 8 Section 3¢ was offered to Rosa Montes
rather than the conference with the Department Head in Rule 8 Scction 3b.  In the Rules, there
are no procedures listed as to the format of the “pre-termination hearing.” However, in the notice
of the meeting, Exhibit C-14, a procedure was outlined for the meeting which stated that Montes
would be permitted to present evidence “before a final determination on your employment is
made.” (Exhibits C-16, C-17, C-14.} The Notice to Rosa Montes on September 16,2025 stated
as follows:
“The hearing is not a formal proceeding. You will be permitted to present any explanation you
may wish to the Interim Parks and Recreation Director concerning the charges and specifications
provided to you. You may present evidence on your behalf and a representative may accompany
you if you desire. Everything that you present at the hearing will be considered before a final
determination on your employment is made.” (Exhibit C-14).

Although Department Head Caballero testified that he was “open” to hearing from the
employee and her representative, he testified that his first act to start the meeting was to sign the
Final Notice of Separation and to move it across the table for Rosa Montes to sign. Certainly, that
act would be one that would take any attorney or representative by surprise if he/she were
expecting a pre-termination hearing where evidence was to be presented in defense of the
employee prior to a final decision by the Department Head. Caballero also testified that he was not
expecting a “hearing.”

Evan Reed, the Assistant City Attorney who was present at the pre-termination hearing,
did not handle or testify at this Civil Service Commission hearing before this Hearing Officer.
However, on behalf of the City he answered allegations by Montes’s attorney that the City by its
actions had waived the pre-termination meeting. He stated that Rosa Montes and her attorney
“declined to participate in such meeting when they began badgering the Department head and HR
representative with irrelevant questions, accusations and assertions. When it is apparent that no
‘consensus’ or ‘agreement’ is or will be forthcoming the City has an inherent right to end such
meeting and issue its proposed discipline. "(Exhibit C-18, Answer No. 3). Notably, he used the

words “agreement” and “consensus,” which are used in the Section 3b Department Head

10



Item #3

conference, but not in Section 3¢ pre-termination hearing.

It appears that the regular procedures in place in the Civil Service Commission Rules were
not followed in this case. They were not followed because Rosa Montes was on leave due to a
workers compensation claim, and because the 120 day rule does not have exceptions applicable to
this case so as to extend the 120 days. The rule requires that the proposed notice be served within
120 days from the date Human Resources became “aware” of the incident, so they mailed the
notice of proposed termination within what they believed was the 120 days. Rather than allow the
employee to request and attend some sort of Rule 8, section 3b conference with the department
head, they only offered the employee, through her attorney, a “pre termination hearing,” which is
a Rule 8, section 3¢ procedure. The Department Director then treated the pre-termination hearing
as one where the proposed notice had already been presented and thereafter a conference with the
Department head had already been held. Of course this had not taken place in the case of Rosa
Montes. His testimony is that on September 22, 2025, he signed and handed over the signed
termination notice at the beginning of the pre-termination hearing, which is what would have
happened in the usual case where the employee is not on leave and is hand delivered the proposed
termination notice and is given a chance to request an informal conference with the Department
head prior to being given the final Notice. In other words, he jumped to the end of a due process
procedure where the prior steps of the procedure had not taken place.

While there are no specific procedures or format given in the rules of Section 3¢ of Rule 8
for a “pre-termination hearing,” under due process it would certainly require more than handing
the employee the final notice of termination so that she can sign it. The City contends that the
letter (Exhibit C-15,p.2) from Attorney Chacon which outlined many of the employee’s defenses,
was enough to comply with due process’s requirements of giving an employee an opportunity to
present reasons as to why the discipline should not be upheld. Even if that were true, it is not
sufficient to meet the Civil Service Commission’s Rule 8 requirements. The employee was never
offered or given an opportunity to ask for the Section 3b conference with the Department head,
which is clearly intended to allow the employee to present her/his explanation or response, and to
allow them to “engage in discussions with a view toward reaching a consensus and agreement
relative to the proposed disciplinary action.” (Exhibit C-1, p. 2-3). The City, through HR Ricardo
Valenzuela, contended at the hearing that HR was not allowed to contact an employee about work

related issues while they are on leave suchas FMLA. However, they did in fact send the Proposed
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Notice of Separation to Rosa Montes by mail during time she was on Icave. The pre-termination
hearing notice stated that the employee would be permitted to present any explanation and
evidence they desired to the Department Director. “Everything that you present at the hearing will
be considered before a final determination on your employment is made.” (Exhibit C-14). Itis no
wonder that the employee’s Attorney was upset, argumentative, and eventually engaged in an
intense exchange with the City’s attorney that resulted in the City’s attorney disbanding the
meeting. The non-attorney witnesses testified that the attorneys basically “went at it.”

[ find that there has been non-compliance by the Department Head/City with the provisions
of Rule 8, Section 3b and 3¢ of the Civil Service Commission Rules. Pursuant to section 3f, any
issue of non-compliance with the rules “will be considered by the hearing officer and/or
Commission upon the appeal of the disciplinary action. 1 recommend that the Civil Service
Commission find that the Department Director/City was non-compliant with Civil Service
Commission Rule 8 which provides employees with their rights and provides the City with their
obligations prior to final discipline such as termination.  Accordingly, the discipline of
termination should not be sustained given the facts of this case.

D. The facts of the case: Drink on the job?

The City’s Disciplinary Matrix policy was created “to provide City leaders and supervisors
with a guideline and reference for corrective and disciplinary action.” It is intended to promote
progressive discipline in a timely and consistent manner. Regardless, the Department Head
maintains the authority to modify the discipline up or down. In the case at hand, the Department
Head, Pablo Caballero, applied the Disciplinary Matrix, Level 4 violations, which provides for
termination upon the first offense of “On Duty use/consumption/distribution of alcohol or illegal
substances. "(Exhibit C-2, p. 11).

Rosa Montes was terminated because Amaris Crabtree reported that seven months earlier,
her immediate supervisor Rosa Montes drank alcohol one time while on the job then drove a City
vehicle with Crabtree as a passenger. The Chronology section above shows that Amaris Crabtree
was a new hire back in August 2024 when the alleged drinking incident took place. Crabtree did
not report the incident to management until March 12, 2025, seven months after the alleged
drinking incident and just after Rosa Montes had extended Crabtree’s probation and placed her on
a performance improvement plan. She also did not report the incident until Rosa Montes went out

on FMLA/workers compensation. (See Chronology above). While the leave appears to be under
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workers compensation, during testimony with Human Resources it was often cited as FMLA.

Amaris Crabtree testified that she delayed reporting the incident because she was afraid
because she was still on probation. When Montes extended her probation, Crabtree felt
“blindsided” and decided to report the alcohol incident even though she was still on probation.

The incident reported by Crabtree was that either on August 21 or August 28, 2024, she
was parked in Clarissa Arreola’s private car with Rosa Montes and Clarissa Arreola. Crabtree
alleged that fellow employee Clarissa Arreola and Crabtree’s supervisor Rosa Montes were
drinking alcohol while they were in the car and on the clock working. She reported that during the
drinking, Montes called another worker, Daniel Calderon, and told him they were drinking.
Montes had Calderon on speaker phone and Calderon replied “you are seriously doing this in front
of the new girl?” Crabtree reported that after Montes had consumed alcohol, she drove Crabtree
in a City vehicle back to the location where Crabtree had parked her private car. (Exhibits C-5, C-
6). Crabtree was not asked during the hearing whether she had gone to the bar to drink with Montes
and Arreola after work, which was later alleged in the Civil Service Commission hearing by Rosa
Montes. Crabtree did not include this in her testimony or written statements. If asked, she might
have denied it, but she was not asked.

When asked about the incident during the HR Investigation, Clarissa Arreola reported in
writing that they were not on the clock when they were sitting in her car. She denied that she and
Rosa were drinking alcohol. She did not remember what was said during the Rosa Montes call to
Daniel Calderon. She did not remember Rosa Montes telling him they were drinking or his
response. (Exhibit C-8, pp. 3-4). Arreola was fired by the City along with Rosa Montes for the
on-duty use of alcohol. She was subpoenaed to attend this Civil Service Hearing at the request of
Rosa Montes’s attorney. However, although Arreola was present and available, Rosa Montes’s
attorney decided to not call her to testify.

At the hearing, Rosa Montes testified and denied drinking on the job while at the park
when they were working. She testified that after she took Crabtree back to pick up Crabtree’s
vehicle, she took her City work truck back home, then she drove her personal vehicle to meet
Clarissa Arreola and Amaris Crabtree for drinks at a bar. Because so much time had passed since
the incident, she remembered the day of the incident but not the full details. She did remember
taking Amaris Crabtree to show her the ropes since she was newly under her supervision. She did

remember calling fellow employee Daniel Calderon and inviting him to go out with them after
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work to the “915 bar with the new girl.” Montes testified that she believed Crabtree waited to
report the alleged alcohol incident until Montes was off work on leave, and that Crabtree was upset
with her because Montes had recently denied her release from probation and placed her on a
performance improvement plan.

After Amaris Crabtree sent an € mail on May 6, 2025 to Brisa Renteria of Human
Resources with more details of the drinking incident than she had given on March 12, 2025,
Richard Valenzuela of Human Resources was assigned to investigate the allegations. Valenzuela
testified that he would normally have interviewed Rosa Montes as part of his investigation.
However, because the 120 days were running by which a proposed notice of discipline had to be
given to the employee, he closed his investigation without input from Rosa Montes. He testified
that he is not allowed to contact an employee who is on FMLA for an investigation interview. He
investigated not only the drinking allegation, but also other allegations involving not only Rosa
Montes but other employees. In his investigation report, he concluded that on August 21, 2024,
Rosa Montes and Clarissa Arreola consumed alcohol while on duty and Montes drove a City
vehicle after consuming alcohol. He based his conclusion on “corroborated witness statements,”
which was Amaris Crabtree’s verbal and written statements and corroboration by Daniel Calderon
of the phone call placed to him by Montes during the incident. (Exhibit C-4). It should be noted
that when Amaris Crabtree testified at this Hearing, she testified that the correct date was August
28, 2024 because she had looked at time records prior to testifying.

Daniel Calderon is a field supervisor on the same level as Amaris Crabtree but he is in
another department and is in charge of preparing and maintaining the playing fields. (Exhibit C-
20). In his written interview and investigation statement dated July 31, 2025, he was asked if on
Wednesday, August 21, 2024, he received a phone call from Rosa Montes between 9:30 and 9:45
p.m. during which Montes told him she and Amaris Crabtree were drinking at Capistrano Park.
He was asked whether he responded : “You are seriously doing this in front of the new girl?”
Calderon responded: “I don't recall the exact words but I do recall having a call something like
that where my respond [sic.] was you shouldn’t be doing this but not sure if any of this was true
or not. On this day she did state that she was out on the field drinking am not sure who she was
with or not but also not sure if this was a correct statement or just joking around.” (Exhibit C-9,
question 4). He had no knowledge of other questions asked about Rosa Montes because *“/ do not

participate or work with her and am not in close contact with her or any of her team we have very
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different work schedulas. [sic.] (Exhibit C-9, questions 6,8,9). Calderon admitted that he never
reported the Rosa Montes incident to anyone “because I don’t work with her so not sure if they
were joking or not.” (Exhibit C-9, question 6). At this Civil Service Appeal hearing, Calderon
testified that Rosa Montes had told him during the call “we are partying.” When it was pointed
out to him that he had written in his statement that she had said “she was out on the field drinking,”
he did not retract his written statement.

Department Director Pablo Caballero testified that when there are incidents involving
drugs or alcohol, there is usually a requirement that at least two supervisors must attest to the
possible intoxication. When this happens, the employee is taken for a drug test. In the case of
Rosa Montes, the incident seven months prior did not fall within the usual parameters. However,
he considered that there were two witnesses to the alleged drinking by Rosa Montes and Clarissa
Arreola, i.e. Amaris Crabtree and Daniel Calderon.

Department Director Caballero testified at this hearing that he felt that Daniel Calderon’s
testimony was credible because Calderon was a good friend of Rosa Montes and yet he confirmed
the drinking. Amaris Crabtree also stated in her written answers that Rosa Montes and Daniel
Calderon had “a very close relationship.” (Exhibit C-6, question 12). However, Calderon wrote in
his investigation statement that he did not “participate or work with her and am not in close contact
with her or any of her team” because of different work schedules. He denied socializing with her
after work. (Exhibit C-9).

Discussion regarding the facts of the case: drinking on job?

To sustain a discipline appealed to the Civil Service Commission, the Department Director
must prove by a preponderance of the evidence that the employee committed the conduct alleged
in the notice of discipline, and that the conduct violated City and/or department policies and rules.
While failing to report violations can result in discipline, there is no evidence that either Amaris
Crabtree or Daniel Calderon were disciplined for failing to report the drinking incident seven
months prior. (Exhibit C-2 Matrix p. 1).

In general, it feels unfair to terminate a 22 year employee because of an incident that
happened seven months prior, especially when the employee is never interviewed for her side of
the story prior to being issued the proposed and final Notice of Separation. The incident, if true,
is a serious violation of policy. The Matrix lists it as a first offense termination violation as an

employee is terminated for violating the drug/alcohol policy even if only one time. The reporting
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employee, Amaris Crabtree, is what can be called a “disgruntled employee,” who testified that
shortly before she reported the drinking incident, she felt “blindsided” by Montes when Montes
extended her probation for three months and put her on a performance improvement plan. That
was what motivated her to report the drinking incident. Therefore, motive certainly colors her
credibility since she alleged she did not report it when it happened because she was newly on
probation, and was afraid to lose her job, but then decided to report it seven months later although
she was still on probation and under a performance improvement plan.

Daniel Calderon’s testimony would appear to support Crabtree’s allegation. However,
how he could remember that she called him between 9:30 pm and 9:45 pm eight months prior on
August 21, 2024, does strain credibility. Those times do place the call during the hours of Montes,
Crabtree and Arreola’s were working. The shift ended at 10:00 p.m. Had he not remembered the
exact time more than eight months later, he would not have been able to confirm that the call came
during work hours. Calderon’s testimony is also suspect because he denied he was friends with
Montes outside of work and yet others, such as the Department Director, believed he and Montes
were good friends. Calderon did testify that Rosa was not his employee so he did not know if she
was just joking when she called him and in his written statement stated: “I don’t recall the exact
words.” Calderon also did not report the incident when it happened because he was not sure “if
they were joking or not.” There was no evidence produced at the hearing that either of the two
witnesses, Daniel Calderon or Amaris Crabtree, were disciplined for failing to report drinking on
the job at the time it allegedly happened.

Lastly, the specifications section of the final Notice of Separation states that the drinking
incident happened on August 21, 2024.(Exhibit C-1,p. 8). Amaris Crabtree reported in her May
6, 2025 e mail that the incident happened “on my first or second week on the job on Wednesday
August 21, 2024 or Wednesday August 28, 2024.” (Exhibit C-5). In her answers to written
questions during the HR investigation, she responded to questions as to what happened on August
21, 2024. She never corrected her answer to say she was not certain which of the two dates was
correct.(Exhibit C-6). At the hearing before this Hearing Officer, Amaris Crabtree testified that
she had reviewed work records prior to testifying and that the correct date was August 28, 2024.
One can wonder why this important clarification of dates was not uncovered during the
investigation of the drinking allegations, especially by the HR investigator whose report concludes
that the incident happened on August 21, 2024, although the complaining witness now says it was
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August 28, 2024.

Therefore, I believe this is a 50/50 proposition as far as the credible evidence. Given the
long time Amaris Crabtree took to report the incident, given the fact that witnesses memories can
fade over time and several did say their memories had faded by the time they were interviewed,
given the fact that Montes was never interviewed during the investigation to give her side of the
story and show the “disgruntled employee” motive of Amaris Crabtree, given the testimony given
by Daniel Calderon that strained credibility that he remembered the exact time of a telephone call
seven months earlier, given that the Department Director gave more credibility to Calderon’s
testimony because he believed Calderon and Monter were good friends, 1 do not find that the
Department Head has proven by a preponderance of the evidence that the discipline should be
sustained. I am of the opinion that it is a 50/50 maybe yes, maybe no, proposition. I can understand
why the Department Director believed that it did occur. One can say that the Director believed it
occurred by at least S1 percent, or even more. Whether it is 50 or 51 percent or more is, of course,
a subjective opinion. In a 50/50 case, the employee wins, because preponderance requires at least
51 percent of the evidence supporting the discipline to be more likely true than not to sustain a
discipline, especially one as serious as termination. However, in the case at hand, [ believe that
the procedural errors, i.e. violation of Civil Service Commission Rule 8 Section 3b and ¢ requires
that the termination be reversed, regardless of whether one believes by 50 or 51 percent that
drinking occurred one time while on the job on either August 21, 2024 or August 28,2024.

RECOMMENDATION

Based on a preponderance of the evidence, | recommend that the separation (termination)

of Rosa Montes not be sustained on one or all of three basis:

a. Violation of Civil Service Commission Rule 8, Section 3e: 120 day rule
b. Violation of Civil Service Commission Rule 8, Section 3b and ¢: due
process meeting with the Department Director

c. Failure to prove the violation of drinking alcohol on the job

Fia
Respectfully submitted on this 3,6 day of (6. ,2026.

@ 0l e
Patricia L. Palafox |
Hearing Officer

17



item #3



item #3



item #3



item #3



item #3



item #3



item #3



item #3



item #3



item #3



item #3



item #3



item #3



item #3



item #3



item #3



item #3



Item #3

CITY OF EL PASO DISCIPLINARY MATRIX 05-30-18
OFFENSE 15T OFFENSE N0 OFFENSE 370 OFFENSE 4™ OFFENSE
(CAUSE OF ACTION) PENALTY PENALTY PENALTY PENALTY
, . FORMAL 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
AWOL/Failure to report for mandatory overtime/callback COUNSELING SUSPENSION SUSPENSION TERMINATION
: = FORMAL 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
B
G R ER T T L2 COUNSELING | SUSPENSION SUSPENSION | TERMINATION
. . FORMAL 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
Cesating€mployee Dissenslon COUNSELING | SUSPENSION SUSPENSION | TERMINATION
. ey FORMAL 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
D T
ress Code/Uniform Policy violation COUNSELING | SUSPENSION | SUSPENSION | TERMINATION
Driving on behalf of the City without current Defensive Driving FORMAL 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
Certification (DDC) COUNSELING | SUSPENSION SUSPENSION | TERMINATION
. 5= FORMAL 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
Falluie et et sched e e ine COUNSELING | SUSPENSION SUSPENSION | TERMINATION
Failure to report driver license revocation/suspension FORMAL o ehs DEMOTION/
COUNSELING | SUSPENSION SUSPENSION | TERMINATION
) : FORMAL 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
FalluseitoenipicelCitv/Department Rules COUNSELING | SUSPENSION SUSPENSION | TERMINATION
Failure to report a violation of policy FORMAL &) 2l 10 DAY DEMOTION/
COUNSELING | SUSPENSION SUSPENSION | TERMINATION
: . ¥ FORMAL 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
Failure to follow City/Department Rules or Policies COUNSELING | SUSPENSION | SUSPENSION | TERMINATION
: FORMAL 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
SO E RIS COUNSELING | SUSPENSION | SUSPENSION | TERMINATION
At fault motor vehicle/equipment accident/incident resulting in FORMAL 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
minor property damage/injury COUNSELING SUSPENSION SUSPENSION TERMINATION
. 3 FORMAL 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
Inappropriate use of the City's e-mail or Intemnet COUNSELING | SUSPENSION | SUSPENSION | TERMINATION
. : : FORMAL 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
Time and Attendance Violations/Unauthorized Overtime COUNSELING SUSPENSION SUSPENSION TERMINATION
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CITY OF EL PASO DISCIPLINARY MATRIX 05-30-18
OFFENSE 15T OFFENSE 2N° OFFENSE 3RP OFFENSE 4™ OFFENSE
(CAUSE OF ACTION) PENALTY PENALTY PENALTY PENALTY
: ; FORMAL 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
M Li
ipogtossiMisplacemesit/Damage;to City Froperty COUNSELING | SUSPENSION | SUSPENSION | TERMINATION
a ; - FORMAL 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
V
lolationofthelOutskde EmploymentPolicy COUNSELING | SUSPENSION | SUSPENSION | TERMINATION
. = FORMAL 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
P
ooriCustomer: service/Unprofessional Conduct COUNSELING | SUSPENSION | SUSPENSION | TERMINATION
. 8 o FORMAL 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
R IR Pl e L COUNSELING | SUSPENSION | SUSPENSION | TERMINATION
: s . . Y FORMAL 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
Negligent operation of a motor vehicle (non-accident or injury) COUNSELING SUSPENSION SUSPENSION TERMINATION
3 o FORMAL 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
Safety Violation (nan-injury or property damage} COUNSELING | SUSPENSION SUSPENSION | TERMINATION
| g’ : : FORMAL 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
eliciationRolicyolation COUNSELING | SUSPENSION SUSPENSION | TERMINATION
5 3 AR i - FORMAL 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
Safety Violation resuiting in minor injury or minor property damage COUNSELING SUSPENSION SUSPENSION TERMINATION
Displaying/Possession/Distribution of inappropriate images not FORMAL 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
deemed to be pornographic <o COUNSELING SUSPENSION SUSPENSION TERMINATION
Note: Discipline crossing departmental lines may be issued by the City Manager or designee
* Violations not involving Rules or Policies will be addressed with a Formal Counseling and subsequent repeat violations would be a violation of a Direct Order
** The Human Resources Director will make determination
*** Employees will be sent home to change into appropriate attire on their own time for each incident
*s**provided said policy has been approved by City Legal and City Human Resources
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CITY OF EL PASO DISCIPLINARY MATRIX 05-30-18
OFFENSE 157 OFFENSE 2N OFFENSE 370 QFFENSE 4™ OFFENSE
(CAUSE OF ACTION) PENALTY PENALTY PENALTY PENALTY
. 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
D SUSPENSION SUSPENSION | TERMINATION
R T 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
Disobeying a Direct Order (Insubordination) SUSPENSION SUSPENSION TERMINATION
. 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
2L BT RO SUSPENSION | SUSPENSION | TERMINATION
3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
il SUSPENSION | SUSPENSION | TERMINATION
Moderate at fault motor vehicle/equipment accident/incident 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
resulting in moderate property damage/injury SUSPENSION SUSPENSION TERMINATION
. 3 DAY 10 DAY DEMOTION/
D AT SRR SUSPENSION | SUSPENSION | TERMINATION
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CITY OF EL PASO DISCIPLINARY MATRIX

05-30-18

OFFENSE 15T OFFENSE 2"° OFFENSE 3R° OFFENSE 4™ OFFENSE
(CAUSE OF ACTION) PENALTY PENALTY PENALTY PENALTY
At ?c_n .3.30.‘ vehicle/eguipment accident/incident resulting in TERMINATION
serious injury or death.
AWOL (3consecutive days) TERMINATION
Felony Conviction affecting job related duties TERMINATION
Violation of a departmental policy that mandates termination **** | TERMINATION
Loss of _.mn:,_.mq License/Certificate where required in Job TERMINATION
Description
Sexual Harassment- Assault TERMINATION
On Duty use/consumption/distribution of alcohol or illegal TERMINATION
substances
vOm_.nZo test for alcohol or illegal substances/Refusal to submit to TERMINATION
testing
Accessing/distributing/displaying pornography ** TERMINATION
PIP — Unsuccessful completion of a Performance Improvement Plan
— Incompetency or negligence of performance of duties — Recurrent | TERMINATION
inefficient performance
“ ~ »
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Investigation/Complaint Summary
Date of Complaint: May 06, 2025 Ethics Line #: (If Applicable)

Department. Parks & Recreation

Type of Complaint (check all that apply):

[(JRace [JAge [INationalOrigin [IColor [JGender  [Disability [JReligion
CWoarkplace Violence [1Hostile Workplace []Sexual Harassment [JRetaliation L]Bullying

Rule Violation: | i

Complainant(s): L\maris Crabtree, Recreation Program Supervisor,i

Respondent(s): Rosa Montes, Recreation and Sports Coordlnator-

Background and Basis of Complaint:

During the course of an investigation, it was determined that Recreation Program Supervisor Amaris
Crabtree had information that required a separate investigation. On May 06, 2025, the Human Resources
Department received the complaint from Ms. Crabtree. The reports allege violations with the
Recreations and Sports division of the Parks and Recreation Department. A summary of the allegations
and findings of fact are provided below. The investigation included interviews and formal statements
from five (5) employees; however, Rosa Montes, the respondent, is currently on leave and was not

available for an interview.

List of Witnesses Interviewed:

Anguiano, David, Recreation Leader ||

Arreola, Clarissa, Recreation Leader,-

Calderon, Daniel, Park Area Supervisor, I I

Crabtree, Amaris, Recreation Program Supervisor, |l

Montes, Rosa, Recreation and Sports Coordinator |l (Out on Leave - not available for interview)
Paliares, Victoria, Recreation Leader, | I

Allegations & Findings of Fact:

EXHIBIT

fiaif

Investigation Complaint Summary.dot 06/19/2017
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Winter Fest December 25", 2024 Rosa Montes, Clarissa Arreola and David Anguiano and myself are scheduled to

work. Two hours pass by and I don’t see or hear from Clanssa or Rosa. Once it is the end of the night getting closer
to our shift ending | see them come back to help clean up and | was able to smell the alcohols on their breath. The
mannerisms that they had were as if they were intoxicated.

| have brought up to Rosa my concerns of the relationship she has with Clarissa and how it is affecting the work
place due to staff feeling that they can’t talk to Clarissa. Once | brought it up Rosa got very defensive and told me it
was no one’s business about their relationship. There have been multiple times where Rosa will pull Clarissa from
the office and not be back for hours and not once would inform me that she was taking her. When Clarissa calls
out she never calls out to me and would call out to Rosa Montes and Rosa would fail to inform me about the call
out. This is not following the chain of command that is necessary for call outs.

| would like to set up a meeting and discuss many other issues that have been caused by Rosa Montes.

Thank you,

Amaris Crabtree

Recreation Program Supervisor
Nations Tobin Recreation Center
8831 Railroad Dr, El Paso Tx 79904
Cell;

Phone: 915-212-2162

Email: crabtreeac@elpasotexas.gov

From: Renteria, Brisa <RanteriaBl@elpasotexas.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, May 6, 2025 3:46 PM

To: Crabtree, Amaris C. <CrabtreeAC@elpasotexas.gov>
Subject: RE: Date of meeting with Monica and Mike

Perfect, thank you for the information.

Brisa Renteria

Senior Human Resources Analyst
City of El Paso | Human Resources
Office: (915) 212-1268

218 N. Campbell 3" Floor

Oftice Hours: M-Th 7a-6p

From: Crabtree, Amaris C. <CrabiresAL@elpasotexas gov>
Sent: Tuesday, May 6, 2025 1:54 PM

To: Renteria, Brisa <RenteriaBX@elpasotexas.gov>
Subject: RE: Date of meeting with Monica and Mike

Hello,

| will have this to you by today.

Yes, at the time she was using truck 18220 which is under Jesus Lujan. The center we were at when this all took
place was Cfficer David Ortiz Recreation Center which does have cameras.

Thank you,
Amaris Crabtree
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Recreation Program Supervisor
Nations Tobin Recreation Center
8831 Railroad Dr, El Paso Tx 79904
Cell I

Phone: 915-212-2162

Email: crahtrecac@elpasotexas.gov

From: Renteria, Brisa <RenteriaBA@zlpasntexas.cov>
Sent: Tuesday, May 6, 2025 12:00 PM

To: Crabtree, Amaris C. <CrabtrecAC@elpasotexas.gov>
Subject: RE: Date of meefing with Monica and Mike

Good afternoon Amaris

I am following up because | have not received your statement. Could you please submit it as scon as possible?
Also, would you be ahle to let me know what vehicle number Rosa uses and if there’s cameras at the center you

work at? _ (

Thank you,

Brisa Renteria
Senior Human Resources Analyst
City of El Paso | Human Resources

Office: (915) 212-1268
218 N. Campbell 3" Floor
Office Hours: M-Th 7a-6p

From: Renteria, Brisa

Sent: Thursday, April 24, 2025 2:26 PM

To: Crabtree, Amaris C. <CrabtreeAC@elnasolexas gov>
Subject: RE: Date of meeting with Monica and Mike

1 reached out to my supervisor and we don't have anything on file in regards to you needing to speak to HR. Let me
go ahead and have you write a full statement by email and send it over to me. Once | go over it | will schedule you
to come backin.

Thank you,

Brisa Renteria
Senior Human Resources Analyst
City of E! Paso | Human Resources

Office: (915) 212-1268
218 N. Campbell 3™ Floor
Office Hours: M-Th 7a-6p

From: Crabtree, Amaris C. <CrabireeAC@z[pasotaxas gov>
Sent: Thursday, April 24, 2025 1:16 PM

To: Renteria, Brisa <RenteriaBX@elpasoiexas.gov>
Subject: Date of meeting with Monica and Mike
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Hello,

The date was March 12" when | had the meeting with Monica and Mike.
Please let me know if you need any other information.

Thank you,

Amaris Crabtree

Recreation Program Supervisor
Nations Tabin Recreation Center
8831 Railroad Dr, EL Paso Tx 79904
Cell:

Phone: 915-212-2162

Email: crabtrecac@elpasotexas.goy
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